



PREVAILED

Roll Call No. _____

FAILED

Ayes _____

WITHDRAWN

Noes _____

RULED OUT OF ORDER

HOUSE MOTION _____

MR. SPEAKER:

I move that House Bill 1001 be amended to read as follows:

- 1 Page 8, line 43, delete "6,000,000 6,000,000" and insert "**7,000,000**
- 2 **7,000,000**".
- 3 Page 9, line 31, delete "3,000,000 3,000,000" and insert "**4,000,000**
- 4 **4,000,000**".
- 5 Page 11, line 18, delete "1,590,000 1,590,000" and insert
- 6 "**3,180,000 3,180,000**".
- 7 Page 11, line 20, delete "250,000 250,000" and insert "**749,972**
- 8 **749,972**".
- 9 Page 13, delete lines 12 through 13.
- 10 Page 13, line 33, delete "15,000,000 15,000,000" and insert
- 11 "**10,000,000 10,000,000**".
- 12 Page 15, between lines 10 and 11, begin a new paragraph and insert:
- 13 "**INDIANA HISTORICAL SOCIETY BUILDING**
- 14 **Total Operating Expense 984,966 984,966**".
- 15 Page 15, between lines 38 and 39, begin a new line blocked left and
- 16 insert:
- 17 "**COLUMBUS LEARNING CENTER LEASE PAYMENT**
- 18 **Total Operating Expense 2,582,500 2,553,000**".
- 19 Page 16, line 35, delete "43,362,013 43,362,013" and insert
- 20 "**39,013,489 39,013,489**".
- 21 Page 17, line 2, delete "72,625,165 72,625,165" and insert

1 ~~"75,000,000 75,000,000".~~
2 Page 17, line 35, delete "45,000,000 45,000,000" and insert
3 ~~"34,000,000 34,000,000".~~
4 Page 19, line 33, delete "4,400,000 4,400,000" and insert
5 ~~"6,006,409 6,006,409".~~
6 Page 20, line 45, delete "14,994,647 9,394,647" and insert
7 ~~"11,000,000 11,000,000".~~
8 Page 22, line 9, delete "3,708,133 3,708,133" and insert **"6,000,000**
9 ~~**6,000,000".**~~
10 Page 22, line 15, delete "may" and insert **"shall".**
11 Page 22, between lines 25 and 26, begin a new paragraph and insert:
12 **"JUVENILE BEHAVIORAL HEALTH COMPETITIVE**
13 **PILOT PROGRAM**
14 **Total Operating Expense 20,000,000 20,000,000**
15 **JUVENILE DIVERSION GRANT PROGRAM**
16 **Total Operating Expense 5,000,000 5,000,000**
17 **JUVENILE COMMUNITY ALTERNATIVES PROGRAM**
18 **Total Operating Expense 5,000,000 5,000,000".**
19 Page 23, line 26, delete "2,269,118 2,269,118" and insert
20 ~~**"1,098,498 1,098,498".**~~
21 Page 25, between lines 32 and 33, begin a new paragraph and insert:
22 **"COMMISSION ON RACE AND GENDER FAIRNESS**
23 **Total Operating Cost 880,996 880,996".**
24 Page 25, between lines 37 and 38, begin a new paragraph and insert:
25 **"COMMISSION ON WOMEN**
26 **Total Operating Cost 113,601 113,601".**
27 Page 26, line 15, after "appropriation" insert **"may be augmented**
28 ~~**and".**~~
29 Page 26, line 47, delete "27,100,000 27,100,000" and insert
30 ~~**"35,000,000 35,000,000".**~~
31 Page 26, between lines 47 and 48, begin a new line blocked left and
32 insert:
33 **"Notwithstanding IC 4-13-2-19 and any other law, the above**
34 **appropriations do not revert to the state general fund or another**
35 **fund at the close of a state fiscal year but remain available in**
36 **subsequent state fiscal years for purposes of the fund.".**
37 Page 27, between lines 14 and 15, begin a new paragraph and insert:
38 **"MILITARY BASE CONSTRUCTION**
39 **State Construction Fund (IC 9-13-2-173.1) 20,000,000**
40 ~~**20,000,000".**~~
41 Page 29, between lines 7 and 8, begin a new paragraph and insert:
42 **"LAW ENFORCEMENT WATERCRAFT**
43 **Total Operating Expense 900,000 900,000".**
44 Page 29, line 36, delete "811,750 811,750" and insert:
45 ~~**"25,000,000".**~~
46 Page 29, line 49, delete "10,615,778 10,615,778" and insert:

1 **"1,992,670 1,972,670".**
2 Page 30, line 7, delete "1,319,377 1,319,377" and insert **"365,177**
3 **365,177".**
4 Page 30, line 15, delete "806,081 806,081" and insert **"1,041,710**
5 **1,041,710".**
6 Page 32, line 48, delete "2,000,000 2,000,000" and insert
7 **"4,000,000 4,000,000".**
8 Page 33, line 10, delete "675,768 0" and insert **"600,000**
9 **600,000".**
10 Page 33, between lines 20 and 21, begin a new line blocked left and
11 insert:
12 **"The above appropriations shall be augmented to the extent**
13 **necessary to award grants under the historic preservation and**
14 **rehabilitation grant program for all grants determined eligible for**
15 **a grant under IC 4-4-37 before January 1, 2026."**
16 Page 33, line 23, delete "5,565,134 5,565,134" and insert
17 **"14,141,964 14,141,964".**
18 Page 33, line 35, delete "1,000,000 1,000,000" and insert
19 **"2,000,000 2,000,000".**
20 Page 34, delete line 1.
21 Page 34, line 12, delete "32,750,000 32,750,000" and insert
22 **"5,000,000 5,000,000".**
23 Page 34, line 14, delete "20,000,000 20,000,000" and insert
24 **"10,000,000 10,000,000".**
25 Page 34, between lines 16 and 17, begin a new paragraph and insert:
26 **"OFFICE OF SMALL BUSINESS AND**
27 **ENTREPRENEURSHIP**
28 **Total Operating Expense 2,300,000 2,300,000".**
29 Page 34, delete lines 21 through 24.
30 Page 34, line 26, delete "4,850,000 4,850,000" and insert
31 **"4,500,000 4,500,000".**
32 Page 34, line 30, delete "1,000,000 1,000,000" and insert
33 **"5,000,000 5,000,000".**
34 Page 34, line 32, delete "609,945 609,945" and insert:
35 **"5,000,000".**
36 Page 34, between lines 40 and 41, begin a new line blocked left and
37 insert:
38 **"Notwithstanding IC 4-13-2-19 and any other law, the above**
39 **appropriations do not revert to the state general fund or another**
40 **fund at the close of a state fiscal year but remain available in**
41 **subsequent state fiscal years for individual development account**
42 **deposits."**
43 Page 35, line 47, delete "20,000 20,000" and insert **"100,000**
44 **100,000".**
45 Page 35, line 49, delete "45,000,000 45,000,000" and insert
46 **"50,000,000 50,000,000".**

Page 40, between lines 15 and 16, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"OMPP STATE PROGRAMS

Total Operating Expense 27,618,940 27,618,940".

Page 40, between lines 34 and 35, begin a new line blocked left and insert:

"Reimbursement rates in effect on January 1, 2025, for applied behavioral analysis for autism services shall remain the effective reimbursement rates for the biennium beginning July 1, 2025, and ending June 30, 2027."

Page 40, after line 49, begin a new line blocked left and insert:

"Notwithstanding IC 4-13-2-19 and any other law, the above appropriations do not revert to the state general fund or another fund at the close of a state fiscal year but remain available in subsequent state fiscal years for mental health and addiction forensic treatment services grants."

Page 41, line 2, delete "50,000,000 50,000,000" and insert **"75,000,000 75,000,000"**.

Page 41, line 24, delete "7,200,000 7,200,000" and insert **"10,000,000 10,000,000"**.

Page 43, line 19, delete "4,000,000 4,000,000" and insert **"6,496,669 6,496,669"**.

Page 43, line 25, delete "48,765,643 48,765,643" and insert **"55,000,000 55,000,000"**.

Page 43, between lines 25 and 26, begin a new line blocked left and insert:

"Notwithstanding IC 4-13-2-19 and any other law, the above appropriations do not revert to the state general fund or another fund at the close of a state fiscal year but remain available in subsequent state fiscal years for C.H.O.I.C.E. in-home services."

Page 44, line 25, delete "2,000,000 2,000,000" and insert **"2,500,000 2,500,000"**.

Page 45, between lines 3 and 4, begin a new line blocked left and insert:

"The above appropriations shall be augmented to the extent necessary to ensure there is no wait list under the program."

Page 45, line 6, delete "27,436,887 27,436,887" and insert **"50,668,392 75,000,000"**

Page 45, line 11, after "IC 12-17.2-7.5." insert **"The above appropriations shall be augmented to the extent necessary to award prekindergarten vouchers to each child determined to be eligible under IC 12-17.2-7.2."**

Page 45, line 15, delete "301,452,728 301,452,728" and insert **"286,380,092 286,380,092"**.

Page 45, line 41, delete "1,008,947 1,008,947" and insert **"1,500,000 1,500,000"**.

Page 45, line 43, delete "112,000 112,000" and insert **"200,000**

1 **200,000".**
2 Page 45, after line 49, begin a new line blocked left and insert:
3 **"The above appropriations may be augmented to the extent**
4 **necessary to ensure adoption services are fully funded."**
5 Page 46, between lines 15 and 16, begin a new paragraph and insert:
6 **"DOULA PROGRAM**
7 **Total Operating Expense 1,000,000 1,000,000**
8 **The above appropriations are to be used to provide grants for the**
9 **provision of doula services to individuals enrolled in Medicaid**
10 **programs."**
11 Page 46, line 37, delete "100,000,000 100,000,000" and insert
12 **"150,000,000 150,000,000".**
13 Page 46, between line 46 and 47, begin a new paragraph and insert:
14 **"RESIDENTIAL WATER SUPPLY TESTING (IC 16-41-44)**
15 **Total Operating Expense 25,000 25,000".**
16 Page 48, delete lines 5 through 6.
17 Page 49, line 15, delete "7,612,152 7,612,152" and insert
18 **"10,000,000 10,000,000".**
19 Page 49, line 40, delete "1,200,000 1,200,000" and insert
20 **"2,000,000 2,000,000".**
21 Page 50, line 5, delete "1,000,000 1,000,000" and insert **"2,000,000**
22 **2,000,000".**
23 Page 50, between lines 24 and 25, begin a new line block indented
24 and insert:
25 **"Outcomes-Based Prospective Model 3,979,258 3,979,258".**
26 Page 50, between lines 29 and 30, begin a new line block indented
27 and insert:
28 **"Outcomes-Based Prospective Model 300,854 300,854".**
29 Page 50, between lines 31 and 32, begin a new line block indented
30 and insert:
31 **"Outcomes-Based Prospective Model 330,524 330,524".**
32 Page 50, between lines 33 and 34, begin a new line block indented
33 and insert:
34 **"Outcomes-Based Prospective Model 392,163 392,163".**
35 Page 50, between lines 36 and 37, begin a new line block indented
36 and insert:
37 **"Outcomes-Based Prospective Model 505,334 505,334".**
38 Page 50, between lines 39 and 40, begin a new line block indented
39 and insert:
40 **"Outcomes-Based Prospective Model 423,636 423,636".**
41 Page 50, between lines 43 and 44, begin a new line block indented
42 and insert:
43 **"Outcomes-Based Prospective Model 6,750,000 6,750,000".**
44 Page 51, between lines 27 and 28, begin a new line blocked left and
45 insert:
46 **"For each dual credit course hour, the amount to be paid is \$55."**

- 1 Page 51, between lines 47 and 48, begin a new line block indented
- 2 and insert:
- 3 **"Outcomes-Based Prospective Model 4,118,554 4,118,554".**
- 4 Page 52, between lines 5 and 6, begin a new line block indented and
- 5 insert:
- 6 **"Outcomes-Based Prospective Model 965,951 965,951".**
- 7 Page 52, between lines 8 and 9, begin a new line block indented and
- 8 insert:
- 9 **"Outcomes-Based Prospective Model 897,128 897,128".**
- 10 Page 52, between lines 16 and 17, begin a new line blocked left and
- 11 insert:
- 12 **"For each dual credit course hour, the amount to be paid is \$55.".**
- 13 Page 52, between lines 29 and 30, begin a new line block indented
- 14 and insert:
- 15 **"Outcomes-Based Prospective Model 3,979,258 3,979,258".**
- 16 Page 52, between lines 32 and 33, begin a new line blocked left and
- 17 insert:
- 18 **"For each dual credit course hour, the amount to be paid is \$55.".**
- 19 Page 52, between lines 41 and 42, begin a new line block indented
- 20 and insert:
- 21 **"Outcomes-Based Prospective Model 3,979,258 3,979,258".**
- 22 Page 52, between lines 44 and 45, begin a new line blocked left and
- 23 insert:
- 24 **"For each dual credit course hour, the amount to be paid is \$55.".**
- 25 Page 53, between lines 2 and 3, begin a new line block indented and
- 26 insert:
- 27 **"Outcomes-Based Prospective Model 2,660,219 2,660,219".**
- 28 Page 53, between lines 5 and 6, begin a new line blocked left and
- 29 insert:
- 30 **"For each dual credit course hour, the amount to be paid is \$55.".**
- 31 Page 53, between lines 12 and 13, begin a new line block indented
- 32 and insert:
- 33 **"Outcomes-Based Prospective Model 889,508 889,508".**
- 34 Page 53, between lines 15 and 16, begin a new line blocked left and
- 35 insert:
- 36 **"For each dual credit course hour, the amount to be paid is \$55.".**
- 37 Page 53, between lines 23 and 24, begin a new line block indented
- 38 and insert:
- 39 **"Outcomes-Based Prospective Model 4,702,207 4,702,207".**
- 40 Page 53, between lines 26 and 27, begin a new line blocked left and
- 41 insert:
- 42 **"For each dual credit course hour, the amount to be paid is \$55.".**
- 43 Page 54, between lines 45 and 46, begin a new line blocked left and
- 44 insert:
- 45 **"The above appropriations shall be augmented to the extent**
- 46 **necessary to ensure a student who is currently enrolled does not**

- 1 receive a reduction in funding."
- 2 Page 55, line 1, after "IC 21-12-1.7." insert **"However, all higher**
- 3 **education awards must be awarded for the amounts initially**
- 4 **announced in state fiscal year 2024."**
- 5 Page 55, line 6, delete "500,000 500,000" and insert **"244,000**
- 6 **244,000"**.
- 7 Page 55, between lines 39 and 40, begin a new paragraph and insert:
- 8 **"STEM TEACHER RECRUITMENT FUND**
- 9 **Total Operating Expense 5,000,000 5,000,000**
- 10 **The above appropriations may be used to provide grants to**
- 11 **nonprofit organizations that place new science, technology,**
- 12 **engineering, and math teachers in elementary and high schools**
- 13 **located in underserved areas."**
- 14 Page 56, line 28, delete "distributed in accordance with IC 21-13-9."
- 15 and insert **"deposited in the state general fund."**
- 16 Page 57, between lines 8 and 9, begin a new line blocked left and
- 17 insert:
- 18 **"The department of education may not allow an individual to**
- 19 **transfer from another state into the transition to teaching program**
- 20 **to fill an unfunded spot. However, the above appropriations may**
- 21 **be augmented to the extent necessary to provide spots in the**
- 22 **program to eligible applicants."**
- 23 Page 57, delete lines 13 through 14.
- 24 Page 57, line 37, delete "3,675,000 3,675,000" and insert
- 25 **"7,000,000 7,000,000"**.
- 26 Page 58, delete lines 44 through 46, begin a new paragraph and
- 27 insert:
- 28 **"NEXT LEVEL COMPUTER SCIENCE PROGRAM**
- 29 **Total Operating Expense 500,000 500,000"**.
- 30 Page 58, line 48, delete "1,894,521 1,894,521" and insert
- 31 **"2,157,521 2,157,521"**.
- 32 Page 59, line 43, delete "53,749,800 54,576,600" and insert
- 33 **"44,512,500 52,512,500"**.
- 34 Page 60, line 39, delete "15,000,000 15,000,000" and insert
- 35 **"18,000,000 18,000,000"**.
- 36 Page 60, line 47, delete "806,394 806,394" and insert **"4,500,000**
- 37 **4,500,000"**.
- 38 Page 61, line 6, delete "3,000,000 3,000,000" and insert **"2,000,000**
- 39 **2,000,000"**.
- 40 Page 61, between lines 25 and 26, begin a new paragraph and insert:
- 41 **"SCHOOL INTERNET CONNECTION**
- 42 **Total Operating Expense 5,000,000 5,000,000**
- 43 **DUAL IMMERSION PILOT PROGRAM**
- 44 **Total Operating Expense 1,000,000 1,000,000"**.
- 45 Page 61, delete lines 35 through 36.
- 46 Page 61, line 40, delete "1,066,300,000 1,066,300,000" and insert

- 1 **"1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000".**
- 2 Page 61, line 49, delete "state general fund." and insert **"pension**
- 3 **stabilization fund."**
- 4 Page 62, line 12, delete "2,627,285 2,627,285" and insert
- 5 **"3,745,494 3,749,310".**
- 6 Page 62, between lines 24 and 25, begin a new paragraph and insert:
- 7 **"IMAGINATION LIBRARY PROGRAM**
- 8 **Total Operating Expense 4,000,000 4,000,000".**
- 9 Page 62, line 27, delete "3,450,796 3,450,796" and insert
- 10 **"1,565,775 1,565,775".**
- 11 Page 76, between lines 45 and 46, begin a new paragraph and insert:
- 12 **"SECTION 38. IC 4-12-1-23 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE**
- 13 **AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY**
- 14 **1, 2025]: Sec. 23. (a) As used in this section, "state agency" has the**
- 15 **meaning set forth in IC 4-13-1-1(b). The term includes the office of**
- 16 **the following elected state officials:**
- 17 **(1) Governor.**
- 18 **(2) Lieutenant governor.**
- 19 **(3) Secretary of state.**
- 20 **(4) State comptroller.**
- 21 **(5) Treasurer of state.**
- 22 **(6) Attorney general.**
- 23 **(b) Not later than December 1 each year, each state agency shall**
- 24 **submit a report to the budget committee including the following**
- 25 **information:**
- 26 **(1) Any individual employed by the agency who received a**
- 27 **revision, adjustment, or otherwise one time increase to the**
- 28 **individual's pay for which all employees were not generally**
- 29 **eligible, and the amount of the revision, adjustment, or one**
- 30 **time increase.**
- 31 **(2) The name, position, and compensation of any individual**
- 32 **whose compensation is at least equal to the latest Indiana per**
- 33 **capita income amount multiplied by three (3).**
- 34 SECTION 39. IC 4-12-1-19, AS ADDED BY P.L.213-2015,
- 35 SECTION 48, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
- 36 JULY 1, 2025]: Sec. 19. For reporting purposes, the state's combined
- 37 general fund reserves include the balances of the following:
- 38 (1) The reverting accounts within the general fund (IC 4-8.1-1-3).
- 39 (2) The Medicaid contingency and reserve account (section 15.5
- 40 of this chapter).
- 41 (3) The state tuition reserve account (section 15.7 of this chapter).
- 42 (4) The counter-cyclical revenue and economic stabilization fund
- 43 (IC 4-10-18), less any outstanding loans.
- 44 **(5) The federal funding shortfall deficiency fund (IC 4-12-21).**
- 45 SECTION 40. IC 4-12-21 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE
- 46 AS A NEW CHAPTER TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE

UPON PASSAGE]:

Chapter 21. Federal Funding Shortfall Deficiency Fund

Sec. 1. As used in this chapter, "fund" means the federal funding shortfall deficiency fund established by section 2 of this chapter.

Sec. 2. (a) The federal funding shortfall deficiency fund is established to fund programs that may suffer a decrease in the level of federal funding received by the state.

(b) The fund shall be administered by the state board of finance. The fund consists of:

- (1) transfers of amounts that would otherwise revert to the general fund at the end of a state fiscal year;**
- (2) appropriations from the general assembly;**
- (3) gifts and grants to the fund; and**
- (4) deposits of interest under subsection (c).**

(c) The treasurer of state shall invest the money in the fund not currently needed to meet the obligations of the fund in the same manner as other public funds may be invested. Interest that accrues from these investments shall be deposited in the fund.

(d) Money in the fund at the end of a state fiscal year does not revert to the state general fund but remains in the fund to be used exclusively for the purposes of this chapter.

(e) Money in the fund is continuously appropriated for the purposes of the fund.

Sec. 3. The governor, in consultation with the state board of finance, shall closely monitor the amount of federal funds available to the state and how any changes, or potential changes, impact programs and services offered to the citizens of Indiana.

Sec. 4. The state board of finance, in consultation with the governor, may transfer money from the fund as necessary for the use or purpose of any state agency.

Sec. 5. The balance of the fund at the end of a state fiscal year must included in the amount of state reserves calculated by the office of management and budget."

Page 79, between lines 13 and 14, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 44. IC 4-13-2-19, AS AMENDED BY P.L.9-2024, SECTION 90, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 19. (a) Except as specifically provided for in **subsection (d) and** appropriation acts, every appropriation or part thereof remaining unexpended and unencumbered at the close of any fiscal year shall lapse and be returned to the general revenue fund. However, an appropriation for purchase of real estate or for construction or other permanent improvement shall not lapse until the purposes for which the appropriation was made shall have been accomplished or abandoned, unless such appropriation has remained during an entire fiscal biennium without any expenditure therefrom or

1 encumbrance thereon.

2 (b) Except as otherwise expressly provided by law, the provisions
3 of this section shall apply to every appropriation of a stated sum for a
4 specified purpose or purposes made from the general revenue fund, but
5 shall not, unless expressly so provided by law, apply to any fund or
6 balance of a fund derived wholly or partly from special taxes, fees,
7 earnings, fines, federal grants, or other sources which are by law
8 appropriated for special purposes by standing, continuing, rotary, or
9 revolving appropriations.

10 (c) In the case of federal funds encumbered by a state agency that
11 is the recipient of the federal grant, for purposes of meeting
12 reimbursements that are to come due after the expiration of the federal
13 grant, the state agency's encumbrance on its ledgers shall be recognized
14 as valid by the state comptroller for one (1) year or until the money is
15 expended, whichever is sooner.

16 **(d) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this section**
17 **or any other law, any appropriation or part thereof remaining**
18 **unexpended and unencumbered at the close of any fiscal year shall,**
19 **instead of being returned to the general revenue fund, be deposited**
20 **in the federal funding shortfall deficiency fund established by**
21 **IC 4-12-21-2. However, this subsection does not apply to reversions**
22 **of state tuition support under IC 20-43-2-1."**

23 Page 81, delete lines 26 through 47, begin a new paragraph and
24 insert:

25 "SECTION 53. IC 6-3-2-6, AS AMENDED BY P.L.146-2020,
26 SECTION 23, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
27 JANUARY 1, 2025 (RETROACTIVE)]: Sec. 6. (a) Each taxable year,
28 an individual who rents a dwelling for use as the individual's principal
29 place of residence may deduct from the individual's adjusted gross
30 income (as defined in IC 6-3-1-3.5(a)), the lesser of:

- 31 (1) the amount of rent paid by the individual with respect to the
32 dwelling during the taxable year; or
33 (2) ~~three thousand dollars (\$3,000).~~ **four thousand dollars**
34 **(\$4,000).**

35 (b) Notwithstanding subsection (a):

- 36 (1) a married couple filing a joint return for a particular taxable
37 year may not claim a deduction under this section of more than
38 three thousand dollars (\$3,000); and
39 (2) a married individual filing a separate return for a particular
40 taxable year may not claim a deduction under this section of more
41 than one thousand five hundred dollars (\$1,500).

42 (c) The deduction provided by this section does not apply to an
43 individual who rents a dwelling that is exempt from Indiana property
44 tax.

45 (d) For purposes of this section, a "dwelling" includes a single
46 family dwelling and unit of a multi-family dwelling."

1 Delete pages 82 through 97.

2 Page 98, delete lines 1 through 36.

3 Page 100, between lines 13 and 14, begin a new paragraph and
4 insert:

5 "SECTION 56. IC 6-3.1-21-6, AS AMENDED BY P.L.201-2023,
6 SECTION 100, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
7 [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2025 (RETROACTIVE)]: Sec. 6. (a)
8 Except as provided by subsections (b), (d), and (e), an individual who
9 is eligible for an earned income tax credit under Section 32 of the
10 Internal Revenue Code as in effect on January 1, 2023, is eligible for
11 a credit under this chapter equal to:

12 **(1) ~~ten percent (10%)~~ in taxable years beginning after**
13 **December 31, 2024, and before January 1, 2026, eleven**
14 **percent (11%); and**

15 **(2) in taxable years beginning after December 31, 2025, twelve**
16 **percent (12%);**

17 of the amount of the federal earned income tax credit that the
18 individual

19 ~~(1)~~ is eligible to receive in the taxable year and

20 ~~(2)~~ claimed for the taxable year

21 under Section 32 of the Internal Revenue Code as in effect on January
22 1, 2023.

23 (b) In the case of a nonresident taxpayer or a resident taxpayer
24 residing in Indiana for a period of less than the taxpayer's entire taxable
25 year, the amount of the credit is equal to the product of:

26 (1) the amount determined under subsection (a); multiplied by

27 (2) the quotient of the taxpayer's income taxable in Indiana
28 divided by the taxpayer's total income.

29 (c) If the credit amount exceeds the taxpayer's adjusted gross
30 income tax liability for the taxable year, the excess shall be refunded
31 to the taxpayer.

32 (d) If a taxpayer properly elects to determine the taxpayer's earned
33 income in accordance with the federal Bipartisan Budget Act of 2018
34 for purposes of the credit under Section 32 of the Internal Revenue
35 Code for a taxable year beginning after December 31, 2016, the
36 election shall be treated as being made for purposes of the credit under
37 this chapter.

38 (e) The minimum earned income amounts and phaseout threshold
39 amounts for the credit under this section are subject to the same cost of
40 living adjustments provided in the Internal Revenue Code."

41 Page 107, after line 47, begin a new paragraph and insert:

42 "SECTION 60. IC 6-7-1-0.4, AS ADDED BY P.L.220-2011,
43 SECTION 161, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
44 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025]: Sec. 0.4. **(a)** Notwithstanding section 14
45 of this chapter, revenue stamps paid for before July 1, 2007, and in the
46 possession of a distributor may be used after June 30, 2007, only if the

full amount of the tax imposed by section 12 of this chapter, as effective after June 30, 2007, and as amended by P.L.218-2007, is remitted to the department under the procedures prescribed by the department.

(b) Notwithstanding section 14 of this chapter, revenue stamps paid for before July 1, 2025, and in the possession of a distributor may be used after June 30, 2025, only if the full amount of the tax imposed by section 12 of this chapter, as amended and effective after June 30, 2025, is remitted to the department under the procedures prescribed by the department.

SECTION 61. IC 6-7-1-12, AS AMENDED BY P.L.191-2016, SECTION 4, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025]: Sec. 12. The following taxes are imposed, and shall be collected and paid as provided in this chapter, upon the sale, exchange, bartering, furnishing, giving away, or otherwise disposing of cigarettes within the state of Indiana:

(1) On cigarettes weighing not more than three (3) pounds per thousand (1,000), a tax at the rate of ~~four and nine hundred seventy-five thousandths cents (\$0.04975)~~ **fourteen and nine hundred seventy-five thousandths cents (\$0.14975)** per individual cigarette.

(2) On cigarettes weighing more than three (3) pounds per thousand (1,000), a tax at the rate of ~~six and six hundred twelve thousandths cents (\$0.06612)~~ **nineteen and nine hundred two thousandths cents (\$0.19902)** per individual cigarette, except that if any cigarettes weighing more than three (3) pounds per thousand (1,000) shall be more than six and one-half (6 1/2) inches in length, they shall be taxable at the rate provided in subdivision (1), counting each two and three-fourths (2 3/4) inches (or fraction thereof) as a separate cigarette.

SECTION 62. IC 6-7-1-28.1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.201-2023, SECTION 110, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025]: Sec. 28.1. **(a) Subject to subsection (b),** the taxes, registration fees, fines, or penalties collected under this chapter shall be deposited in the following manner:

(1) Four and twenty-two hundredths percent (4.22%) of the money shall be deposited in a fund to be known as the cigarette tax fund.

(2) The following amount of the money shall be deposited in the state general fund:

(A) After June 30, 2011, and before July 1, 2013, sixty and twenty-four hundredths percent (60.24%).

(B) After June 30, 2013, and before July 1, 2023, fifty-six and twenty-four hundredths percent (56.24%).

(C) After June 30, 2023, fifty-six and eighty-four hundredths percent (56.84%).

(3) Five and forty-three hundredths percent (5.43%) of the money shall be deposited into the pension relief fund established in IC 5-10.3-11.

(4) Twenty-seven and five hundredths percent (27.05%) of the money shall be deposited in the healthy Indiana plan trust fund established by IC 12-15-44.2-17.

(5) Two and forty-six hundredths percent (2.46%) of the money shall be deposited in the state general fund for the purpose of paying appropriations for Medicaid—Current Obligations, for provider reimbursements.

(6) The following amount of the money shall be deposited in the state retiree health benefit trust fund established by IC 5-10-8-8.5 as follows:

(A) Before July 1, 2011, five and seventy-four hundredths percent (5.74%).

(B) After June 30, 2011, and before July 1, 2013, zero percent (0%).

(C) After June 30, 2013, four percent (4%).

The money in the cigarette tax fund, the healthy Indiana plan trust fund, or the pension relief fund at the end of a fiscal year does not revert to the state general fund. However, if in any fiscal year, the amount allocated to a fund under subdivision (1) is less than the amount received in fiscal year 1977, then that fund shall be credited with the difference between the amount allocated and the amount received in fiscal year 1977, and the allocation for the fiscal year to the fund under subdivision (2) shall be reduced by the amount of that difference. Money deposited under subdivisions (5) through (6) may not be used for any purpose other than the purpose stated in the subdivision.

(b) The amount of revenue collected under this chapter that is attributable to the increase in the rate of tax imposed on cigarettes under section 12 of this chapter in HB 1001-2025 shall first be used for the purposes described in IC 12-15-1.3-26. Any amount of revenue that exceeds the amount needed for the purposes described in IC 12-15-1.3-26 must be transferred to the Medicaid contingency and reserve account established by IC 4-12-1-15.5."

Page 110, between lines 11 and 12, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 66. IC 12-15-1.3-26 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: **Sec. 26. Before August 1, 2025, the office shall apply to the United States Department of Health and Human Services for any necessary amendment to the:**

(1) health and wellness waiver to fund at least an additional five thousand (5,000) waiver slots; and

(2) PathWays for Aging waiver to fund at least an additional five thousand (5,000) waiver slots;

1 **using funding first from revenue described in IC 6-7-1-28.1(b).**

2 SECTION 67. IC 12-17.2-7.2-1, AS AMENDED BY THE
3 TECHNICAL CORRECTIONS BILL OF THE 2025 GENERAL
4 ASSEMBLY, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
5 JULY 1, 2025]: Sec. 1. As used in this chapter, "eligible child" refers
6 to an individual who:

- 7 (1) is at least four (4) years of age and less than five (5) years of
8 age on August 1 of the state fiscal year for which a grant is sought
9 under the prekindergarten ~~pilot~~ program;
- 10 (2) is a resident of Indiana or otherwise has legal settlement in
11 Indiana, as determined under IC 20-26-11;
- 12 (3) is a member of a household with an annual income that does
13 not exceed ~~one hundred fifty percent (150%)~~ **four hundred**
14 **percent (400%)** of the federal poverty level;
- 15 (4) receives qualified early education services from an eligible
16 provider, as determined by the office;
- 17 (5) has a parent or guardian who participates in a parental
18 engagement and involvement component provided by the eligible
19 provider;
- 20 (6) has a parent or guardian who agrees to ensure that the child
21 meets the attendance requirements determined by the office; and
22 (7) meets the requirements under section 7.2(a) and 7.2(c) of this
23 chapter.

24 Page 117, delete lines 32 through 47, begin a new paragraph and
25 insert:

26 "SECTION 84. IC 20-43-2-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.205-2013,
27 SECTION 268, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
28 [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE]: Sec. 1. **(a)** The department shall
29 distribute the amount appropriated by the general assembly for
30 distribution as state tuition support in accordance with this article.
31 **Except as provided in subsection (b),** if the appropriations for
32 distribution as state tuition support are more than required under this
33 article, any excess shall revert to the state general fund. The
34 appropriations for state tuition support shall be made each state fiscal
35 year under a schedule set by the budget agency and approved by the
36 governor. However, the schedule must provide:

- 37 (1) for at least twelve (12) payments;
- 38 (2) that one (1) payment shall be made at least every forty (40)
39 days; and
- 40 (3) the total of the payments in each state fiscal year must equal
41 the amount required under this article.

42 **(b) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in HEA**
43 **1001-2023 (P.L.201-2023), HB 1001-2025, or any other law, any**
44 **amount appropriated by the general assembly in HEA 1001-2023**
45 **(P.L.201-2023) or HB 1001-2025 for distribution as state tuition**
46 **support in the state fiscal year ending June 30, 2025, the state fiscal**

year ending June 30, 2026, and the state fiscal year ending June 30, 2027, that:

- (1) is in excess of the amount required under this article; or
- (2) remains unexpended and unencumbered at the end of the state fiscal year;

shall not revert to the state general fund. Instead, the department shall distribute the excess among each school corporation and charter school in the state to be distributed in an equal amount among each full-time teacher in each school corporation and charter school.

SECTION 85. IC 20-43-3-8, AS AMENDED BY P.L.201-2023, SECTION 200, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JUNE 29, 2025]: Sec. 8. A school corporation's foundation amount is the following:

- (1) ~~Six thousand five hundred ninety dollars (\$6,590) for the state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023;~~
- (2) ~~six thousand six hundred eighty-one dollars (\$6,681) for the state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024; state fiscal years beginning after June 30, 2025.~~

SECTION 86. IC 20-43-6-3, AS AMENDED BY P.L.201-2023, SECTION 204, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JUNE 29, 2025]: Sec. 3. (a) **Except as provided in IC 20-43-16**, a school corporation's basic tuition support for a state fiscal year is the amount determined under the applicable provision of this section.

(b) This subsection applies to a school corporation that does not have any students in the school corporation's current ADM for the year for whom, of the instructional services that the students receive from the school corporation, at least fifty percent (50%) is virtual instruction. The school corporation's basic tuition support for a state fiscal year is equal to the amount determined under STEP FOUR of the following formula:

STEP ONE: Multiply the foundation amount by the school corporation's current ADM.

STEP TWO: Multiply the school corporation's complexity index by,

- (A) ~~for the state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023; three thousand nine hundred eighty-three dollars (\$3,983); and~~
- (B) ~~for the each state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024; after June 30, 2025,~~ four thousand twenty-four dollars (\$4,024).

STEP THREE: Multiply the STEP TWO amount by the school corporation's current ADM.

STEP FOUR: Determine the sum of the STEP ONE amount and the STEP THREE amount.

(c) This subsection applies to a school corporation that has students in the school corporation's current ADM for the year for whom, of the

instructional services that the students receive from the school corporation, at least fifty percent (50%) is virtual instruction. The school corporation's basic tuition support for a state fiscal year is equal to the amount determined under STEP SEVEN of the following formula:

STEP ONE: Determine the total number of students in the school corporation's current ADM for the year for whom, of the instructional services that the students receive from the school corporation, at least fifty percent (50%) is virtual instruction.

STEP TWO: Determine the result of the school corporation's current ADM for the year minus the STEP ONE amount.

STEP THREE: Determine the result of:

(A) the foundation amount; multiplied by

(B) the STEP TWO amount.

STEP FOUR: Determine the result of:

(A) the STEP ONE amount; multiplied by

(B) eighty-five percent (85%) of the foundation amount.

STEP FIVE: Multiply the school corporation's complexity index by,

~~(A) for the state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023, three thousand nine hundred eighty-three dollars (\$3,983); and~~

~~(B) for the each state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024, after June 30, 2025, four thousand twenty-four dollars (\$4,024).~~

STEP SIX: Multiply the STEP FIVE amount by the school corporation's current ADM.

STEP SEVEN: Determine the sum of the STEP THREE amount, the STEP FOUR amount, and the STEP SIX amount."

Page 118, delete lines 1 through 43.

Page 126, delete lines 42 through 47, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 94. IC 20-43-16.5 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW CHAPTER TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JUNE 29, 2025]:

Chapter 16.5. School Funding

Sec. 1. Notwithstanding any other law, state tuition support distribution amounts in a state fiscal year beginning after June 30, 2025, are determined under this chapter.

Sec. 2. If a school corporation has an ADM greater than zero (0) and received a state tuition support distribution in the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024, the school corporation is entitled to receive a tuition support distribution equal to the sum of:

(1) the total state tuition support distribution the school corporation was eligible to receive in the immediately preceding state fiscal year multiplied by one and two-hundredths (1.02); plus

(2) the amount of the supplemental complexity grant

determined under section 6 of this chapter.

Sec. 3. If a school corporation has an ADM greater than zero (0) and did not receive a state tuition support distribution in the state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 2025, the state tuition support distribution for the school corporation is determined according to the following:

(1) If the school corporation first operated in the state fiscal year that began on July 1, 2025, the school corporation's state tuition distribution is determined according to the following:

(A) For the state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2025, the state tuition support amount as otherwise determined under this article.

(B) For the state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2026, the state tuition support distribution amount the school corporation received in the immediately preceding state fiscal year multiplied by one and two-hundredths (1.02).

(2) If the school corporation first operated in the state fiscal year that began on July 1, 2026, the state tuition support amount as otherwise determined under this article.

Sec. 4. In the case of an eligible school (as defined in IC 20-51-1-4.7) that had at least one (1) choice scholarship student in the state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024, the eligible school's state tuition distribution is determined according to the following:

(1) For a state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2025, the aggregate amount of choice scholarships provided to the eligible school's students in the immediately preceding state fiscal year multiplied by one and two-hundredths (1.02).

(2) For the state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2026, the aggregate amount of choice scholarships provided to the eligible school's students in the immediately preceding state fiscal year multiplied by one and two-hundredths (1.02).

Sec. 5. In the case of an eligible school (as defined in IC 20-51-1-4.7) that did not have at least one (1) choice scholarship student in the state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024, the eligible school's state tuition distribution is determined according to the following:

(1) For the state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2025, the aggregate amount of choice scholarships provided to the eligible school's students as otherwise determined under this article.

(2) For the state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2026, the aggregate amount of choice scholarships provided to the eligible school's students in the immediately preceding state fiscal year multiplied by one and two-hundredths (1.02).

(3) If the eligible school accepted choice scholarships for the first time in the state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2026, the aggregate amount of choice scholarships provided to the

1 eligible school's students as otherwise determined under this
2 article.

3 **Sec. 6. A school corporation is entitled to a supplemental**
4 **complexity grant in an amount that the total amount of complexity**
5 **grants the school corporation received in state fiscal year 2025**
6 **bears in proportion to the total amount appropriated for**
7 **supplemental complexity grants in the state fiscal year.**

8 SECTION 95. IC 20-51-4-2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.165-2021,
9 SECTION 174, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
10 [EFFECTIVE JUNE 29, 2025]: Sec. 2. (a) Except as provided in
11 subsection (b), an eligible ~~choice scholarship student~~ school is entitled
12 to a choice scholarship under this chapter for each school year that ~~the~~
13 ~~an~~ eligible choice scholarship student enrolls in ~~an~~ the eligible school.

14 (b) An eligible choice scholarship student is not entitled to a choice
15 scholarship under this chapter for a particular year if the eligible choice
16 scholarship student receives an annual grant amount under
17 IC 20-51.4-4-2 under the Indiana education scholarship account
18 program for the same school year.

19 SECTION 96. IC 20-51-4-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.165-2021,
20 SECTION 177, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
21 [EFFECTIVE JUNE 29, 2025]: Sec. 4. (a) The amount an eligible
22 ~~choice scholarship student~~ school is entitled to receive under this
23 chapter **on behalf of an eligible student** for a school year is equal to
24 the following:

25 (1) The lesser of the following:

26 (A) The sum of the tuition or transfer tuition and fees required
27 for enrollment or attendance of the eligible choice scholarship
28 student at the eligible school selected by the eligible choice
29 scholarship student for a school year that the eligible choice
30 scholarship student (or the parent of the eligible choice
31 scholarship student) would otherwise be obligated to pay to
32 the eligible school.

33 (B) For the state fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021, and each
34 state fiscal year thereafter, an amount equal to ninety percent
35 (90%) of the state tuition support amount determined under
36 section 5 of this chapter.

37 (2) In addition to the amount described in subdivision (1), if the
38 eligible choice scholarship student has been identified as eligible
39 for special education services under IC 20-35 and the eligible
40 school provides the necessary special education or related
41 services to the eligible choice scholarship student, any amount
42 that a school corporation would receive under IC 20-43-7 for the
43 eligible choice scholarship student if the eligible choice
44 scholarship student attended the school corporation. However, if
45 an eligible choice scholarship student changes schools during the
46 school year after the December 1 count under IC 20-43-7-1 of

1 eligible pupils enrolled in special education programs and the
 2 eligible choice scholarship student enrolls in a different eligible
 3 school, any choice scholarship amounts paid to the eligible choice
 4 scholarship student for the remainder of the school year after the
 5 eligible choice scholarship student enrolls in the different eligible
 6 school shall not include amounts that a school corporation would
 7 receive under IC 20-43-7 for the eligible choice scholarship
 8 student if the eligible choice scholarship student attended the
 9 school corporation.

10 (b) The amount an eligible choice scholarship student is entitled to
 11 receive under this chapter if the eligible student applies for the choice
 12 scholarship under section 7(e) of this chapter shall be reduced on a
 13 prorated basis in the manner prescribed in section 6 of this chapter."

14 Page 127, delete lines 1 through 13.

15 Page 127, line 16, reset in roman "once".

16 Page 127, line 16, delete "twice".

17 Page 127, line 17, strike "eligible choice scholarship student (or the
 18 parent of the eligible choice" and insert "**eligible school**".

19 Page 127, line 18, strike "scholarship student)".

20 Page 127, delete lines 31 through 47.

21 Page 128, delete line 1.

22 Page 140, between lines 32 and 33, begin a new paragraph and
 23 insert:

24 "SECTION 124. [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025] (a) **Notwithstanding**
 25 **any provision to the contrary in this act, or any other law, the total**
 26 **amount of money that may be appropriated from the state general**
 27 **fund in each of the state fiscal years beginning after June 30, 2025,**
 28 **and ending before July 1, 2027, for the teachers' retirement fund**
 29 **distribution may not exceed one billion dollars (\$1,000,000,000).**
 30 **Any amount that exceeds one billion dollars (\$1,000,000,000) is**
 31 **appropriated from the pension stabilization fund as provided in**
 32 **this act. An amount equal to the amount that exceeds one billion**
 33 **dollars (\$1,000,000,000) shall be transferred from the state general**
 34 **fund to the federal funding shortfall deficiency fund established by**
 35 **IC 4-12-21-2 to be used for the purposes of the fund.**

36 (b) **This SECTION expires July 1, 2027.**

37 SECTION 125. [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025] (a) **There is**
 38 **appropriated from the state general fund to the department of**
 39 **natural resources for the biennium beginning July 1, 2025, and**
 40 **ending June 30, 2027, thirty million dollars (\$30,000,000) for use**
 41 **in creating, developing, and maintaining trails and trail systems.**

42 (b) **This SECTION expires July 1, 2027.**

43 SECTION 126. [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025] (a) **There is**
 44 **appropriated from the state general fund to the department of**
 45 **natural resources for the biennium beginning July 1, 2025, and**
 46 **ending June 30, 2027, three million dollars (\$3,000,000) for state**

1 park trail maintenance.

2 (b) This SECTION expires July 1, 2027.

3 SECTION 127. [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025] (a) There is
4 appropriated from the state general fund to the department of
5 homeland security in each of the state fiscal years beginning after
6 June 30, 2025, and ending before July 1, 2027, two hundred
7 thousand dollars (\$200,000) to be used for the PFAS biomonitoring
8 pilot program.

9 (b) This SECTION expires July 1, 2027.

10 SECTION 128. [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025] (a) There is
11 appropriated from the state general fund to the governor's council
12 for people with disabilities in each of the state fiscal years
13 beginning after June 30, 2025, and ending before July 1, 2027, four
14 hundred fifty thousand dollars (\$450,000).

15 (b) This SECTION expires July 1, 2027.

16 SECTION 129. [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025] (a) There is
17 appropriated from the state general fund for the biennium
18 beginning July 1, 2025, and ending June 30, 2027, an amount of fee
19 replacement money sufficient for each state educational institution
20 (as defined in IC 21-7-13-32) to carry out one (1) capital project,
21 after review by the budget committee. However, debt service
22 payments may not be made until after December 31, 2028.

23 (b) This SECTION expires July 1, 2027.

24 SECTION 130. [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025] (a) There is
25 appropriated from the tobacco master settlement agreement fund
26 created by IC 4-12-1-14.3 to the behavioral health commission in
27 each of the state fiscal years beginning after June 30, 2025, and
28 ending before July 1, 2027, thirteen million dollars (\$13,000,000)
29 for the 988 suicide and crisis lifeline.

30 (b) This SECTION expires July 1, 2027.

31 SECTION 131. [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025] (a) There is
32 appropriated from the tobacco master settlement agreement fund
33 created by IC 4-12-1-14.3 to the Indiana department of health in
34 each of the state fiscal years beginning after June 30, 2025, and
35 ending before July 1, 2027, five million dollars (\$5,000,000) to be
36 used for awarding grants to entities for alcohol addiction and
37 treatment programs.

38 (b) This SECTION expires July 1, 2027.

39 SECTION 132. [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025] (a) There is
40 appropriated from the state general fund to the Indiana
41 department of health in each of the state fiscal years beginning
42 after June 30, 2025, and ending before July 1, 2027, two hundred
43 fifty thousand dollars (\$250,000) to be used for providing
44 Alzheimer's outreach and education to providers who work with
45 treatment and medications approved by the federal drug
46 administration and to patients in underserved and
47 underrepresented areas of the state.

(b) This SECTION expires July 1, 2027.

SECTION 133. [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025] (a) There is appropriated from the state general fund to the Indiana department of health for the biennium beginning July 1, 2025, and ending June 30, 2027, two million dollars (\$2,000,000) to be used for awarding grants to school corporations to be used for programs preventing and abating vaping among school age children.

(b) This SECTION expires July 1, 2027.

SECTION 134. [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025] (a) There is appropriated from the state general fund to the department of education in each of the state fiscal years beginning after June 30, 2025, and ending before July 1, 2027, two hundred thousand dollars (\$200,000) to be used for:

(1) e-sports outreach and development to underserved, underrepresented, and disadvantaged students in existing e-sports programs or to assist in developing new e-sports programs; and

(2) to supplement existing career scholarship accounts and to pay for technical hardware, software, and equipment.

(b) This SECTION expires July 1, 2027.

SECTION 135. [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025] (a) There is appropriated from the state general fund to the department of education for the biennium beginning July 1, 2025, and ending June 30, 2027, two million dollars (\$2,000,000) to be used for awarding grants to school corporations for updating instructional materials, including maps and globes, to account for any changes in the names of geographical features that are recognized by the federal government.

(b) This SECTION expires July 1, 2027.

SECTION 136. [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025] (a) There is appropriated from the state general fund to the Indiana Sports Corporation for the biennium beginning July 1, 2025, and ending June 30, 2027, five hundred thousand dollars (\$500,000) to be used to incentivize and promote professional wrestling matches being held in the state.

(b) This SECTION expires July 1, 2027.

SECTION 137. [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025] (a) There is appropriated from the state general fund to the Indiana destination development corporation for the biennium beginning July 1, 2025, and ending June 30, 2027, five hundred thousand dollars (\$500,000) to be used to create and establish sports tourism programs.

(b) This SECTION expires July 1, 2027.

SECTION 138. [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE] (a) There is appropriated from the state general fund to the cities of Hammond, East Chicago, and Michigan City in the state fiscal year beginning

July 1, 2025, and ending June 30, 2026, an amount equal to seven percent (7%) annually for any amounts not paid as required under IC 4-33-13-5.3 for state fiscal years 2022 through 2025. The amounts appropriated shall be distributed no later than July 15, 2025.

(b) This SECTION expires July 1, 2027.

SECTION 139. [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE] (a) The legislative council is urged to assign to the interim study committee on fiscal policy established by IC 2-5-1.3-4 during the 2025 legislative interim the task of studying the feasibility of the various adjusted gross income tax reductions, state gross retail tax exemptions and holidays, and adjusted gross income tax deductions included in the introduced version of HB 1001-2025.

(b) This SECTION expires December 31, 2025.

SECTION 140. [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE] (a) The legislative council is urged to assign to the interim study committee on fiscal policy established by IC 2-5-1.3-4 during the 2025 legislative interim the task of studying the intermediate and long term state funding structure of school funding, including postsecondary education funding.

(b) This SECTION expires December 31, 2025.

SECTION 141. [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE] (a) The legislative council is urged to assign to the interim study committee on fiscal policy established by IC 2-5-1.3-4 during the 2025 legislative interim the task of studying the topic of increasing the tax rate imposed on alcohol and vaping products.

(b) This SECTION expires December 31, 2025.

SECTION 142. [EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2025 (RETROACTIVE)] (a) IC 6-3-2-6, as amended by this act, applies to taxable years beginning after December 31, 2024.

(b) This SECTION expires July 1, 2028."

Renumber all SECTIONS consecutively.

(Reference is to HB 1001 as printed February 17, 2025.)

Representative Porter